

No. 61
STATE OF MICHIGAN
JOURNAL
OF THE
House of Representatives
100th Legislature
REGULAR SESSION OF 2019

House Chamber, Lansing, Thursday, June 13, 2019.

12:00 Noon.

The House was called to order by the Speaker.

The roll was called by the Clerk of the House of Representatives, who announced that a quorum was present.

Afendoulis—present	Filler—present	Kahle—present	Reilly—present
Albert—present	Frederick—present	Kennedy—present	Rendon—present
Alexander—present	Garrett—present	Koleszar—present	Robinson—present
Allor—present	Garza—present	Kuppa—present	Sabo—present
Anthony—present	Gay-Dagnogo—present	LaFave—present	Schroeder—present
Bellino—present	Glenn—present	LaGrand—present	Shannon—present
Berman—present	Green—present	Lasinski—present	Sheppard—present
Bolden—present	Greig—present	Leutheuser—present	Slagh—present
Bollin—present	Griffin—present	Liberati—present	Sneller—present
Brann—present	Guerra—present	Lightner—present	Sowerby—present
Brixie—present	Haadsma—present	Lilly—present	Stone—present
Byrd—present	Hall—present	Love—present	Tate—present
Calley—present	Hammoud—present	Lower—present	VanSingel—present
Cambensy—present	Hauck—present	Maddock—present	VanWoerkom—present
Camillieri—present	Hernandez—present	Manoogian—present	Vaupel—present
Carter, B.—present	Hertel—present	Marino—present	Wakeman—present
Carter, T.—present	Hoadley—present	Markkanen—present	Warren—present
Chatfield—present	Hoitenga—present	Meerman—present	Webber—present
Cherry—present	Hood—present	Miller—present	Wendzel—present
Chirkun—present	Hope—present	Mueller—present	Wentworth—present
Clemente—present	Hornberger—present	Neeley—present	Whiteford—present
Cole—present	Howell—present	O'Malley—present	Whitsett—present
Coleman—present	Huizenga—present	Pagan—present	Wittenberg—present
Crawford—present	Iden—present	Paquette—present	Witwer—present
Eisen—present	Inman—excused	Peterson—present	Wozniak—present
Elder—present	Johnson, C.—present	Pohutsky—present	Yancey—present
Ellison—present	Johnson, S.—present	Rabhi—present	Yaroch—present
Farrington—present	Jones—present		

e/d/s = entered during session

Rev. Lila R. Martin, Pastor of Trinity African Methodist Episcopal Church in Lansing, offered the following invocation:

“Eternal Creator, we bow before You today with humble thanksgiving for the blessings that You have bestowed upon each of us. We come before Your presence asking You to touch with Your hand of love, for love makes the difference in all that we do and say. We pray that You will bless these law makers, remind them that it is not about them, it is about the people who elected them. Remind them that the decisions they make should be for the good of the community they are representing. Help us all to remember that we are all Your children and we are all equal in Your sight. Therefore, we ask You to guide and direct the leadership of this governmental body in every way. Thank You for hearing us today. Amen.”

Rep. Cole moved that Rep. Inman be excused from today’s session.
The motion prevailed.

The Speaker called the Speaker Pro Tempore to the Chair.

Motions and Resolutions

Reps. Brenda Carter, Chirkun, Clemente, Crawford, Garza, Haadsma, Hood, Lasinski, Love, Pohutsky, Sabo, Shannon, Sneller, Sowerby, Stone and Warren offered the following resolution:

House Resolution No. 123.

A resolution to urge the Congress of the United States to establish and fund programs that support positive health practices for minority mothers.

Whereas, As the country with the highest maternal death rate in the developed world, the U.S. lags behind many other countries. The U.S. also struggles with persistent racial disparities. Black mothers in the U.S. die at three to four times the rate of white mothers according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. From 2011 to 2013, pregnancy-related deaths among black women were dramatically higher than women of other races, with 43.5 deaths per 100,000 live births among black women compared to 12.7 and 14.4 deaths per 100,000 live births among white women and women of other races, respectively; and

Whereas, Michigan ranks 27th in the nation for its maternal mortality rate, and Michigan’s pregnancy-related mortality rates are particularly concerning for black women. Between 1999 and 2010, black women in Michigan experienced a pregnancy-related mortality rate of 50.8 deaths per 100,000 live births compared to 16.6 deaths per 100,000 live births for white women according to the Michigan Maternal Mortality Surveillance Project; and

Whereas, The high death rate of minority mothers is one of the widest of all racial disparities in women’s health. Black women are 22 percent more likely to die from heart disease than white women and 71 percent more likely to die from cervical cancer, but they are 243 percent more likely to die from pregnancy- or childbirth-related causes. Black women are two to three times more likely than white women to die from pregnancy-related conditions, such as preeclampsia, eclampsia, abruptio placentae, placenta previa, and postpartum hemorrhage. These alarming statistics for black maternal health cut across socio-economic status, maternal age, and education levels; and

Whereas, Despite the nationwide need for improvements in maternal health, more than 100 diseases and conditions receive more funding from the National Institutes of Health than maternal health; and

Whereas, It is important to recognize the necessity of ending maternal mortality nationally and globally and intensifying initiatives to improve maternal health and rights. It is vital to bring attention to the state of minority and black maternal health, study and understand the root causes of poor maternal health outcomes, and support community-driven programs and care solutions. We acknowledge the crucial importance of improving prenatal care, overall maternal health care, breastfeeding rates, and nutrition. To properly address maternal health disparities, it is critical to amplify the voices of black mothers, women, families, and stakeholders, as well as people from all racial and ethnic minorities who are burdened by unjust health disparities; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the House of Representatives, That we urge the Congress of the United States to establish and fund programs that support positive health practices for minority mothers; and be it further

Resolved, That copies of this resolution be transmitted to the President of the United States, the President of the United States Senate, the Speaker of the United States House of Representatives, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, and members of the Michigan congressional delegation.

The resolution was referred to the Committee on Families, Children, and Seniors.

Reps. Lasinski, Yancey, Ellison, Sabo, Byrd, Tate, Mueller, Vaupel, Howell, Love, Rabhi, Hoadley, Pohutsky, Warren, Jones, Allor, Chirkun, Clemente, Elder, Garza, Haadsma, Hood, Kuppa, Shannon, Sneller, Sowerby and Stone offered the following resolution:

House Resolution No. 124.

A resolution to declare June 14, 2019, as Fisher House Day in the state of Michigan.

Whereas, Michigan now boasts among its citizens more than 670,000 veterans, many of whom are recently returned home from service in Iraq and Afghanistan; and

Whereas, The Veterans' Administration Ann Arbor Healthcare System (VAAHS) provides state-of-the-art healthcare for hundreds of thousands of veterans living in Michigan and Ohio; and

Whereas, The VAAHS serves as a referral center for specialty care, providing critical medical treatment that unavailable in other Veterans' Administration (VA) facilities, including trans-aortic valve replacement, deep brain stimulation for Parkinson's Disease, and access to the Traumatic Brain Injury Center; and

Whereas, Each year, the VAAHS serves veterans by providing more than 630,000 outpatient visits and over 5,000 inpatient admissions in their care centers; and

Whereas, Many VAAHS patients travel a long distance to receive care, which can present a significant barrier to healthcare for these veterans and their families and caregivers. Over 500 housing requests are made each month to Veteran Affairs Medical Centers in southeast Michigan by family members for the purpose of traveling with their veteran as he or she receives care; and

Whereas, Family support and engagement has been shown to significantly improve patient outcomes. The Fisher House Program provides a free-of-charge "home away from home" for families of patients receiving medical care at major military and VA medical centers; and

Whereas, There are currently 71 Fisher Houses located in 27 states. In May 2016, Fisher House Michigan, a nonprofit organization under section 501(c)(3) of the federal tax code, was formed with the purpose of bringing the first Fisher House to Michigan; and

Whereas, The U.S. Department of Veterans' Affairs and the Fisher House Foundation approved a location at the VAAHS in November 2016. The construction will be funded by a \$5 million capital campaign by Fisher House Michigan, as well as matching funds from The Fisher House Foundation, a nationwide nonprofit organization. Once it is complete, the Fisher House at the VAAHS will provide 5,840 nights annually of free lodging to veterans' family members and caregivers; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the House of Representatives, That the members of this legislative body declare June 14, 2019, as Fisher House Day in the state of Michigan. We recognize and commend the groundbreaking of the first Fisher House in Michigan; and be it further

Resolved, That we encourage the citizens of Michigan to support these efforts.

The resolution was referred to the Committee on Government Operations.

Reps. Elder, Kuppa, Paquette, Wozniak, Koleszar, Yancey, Hood, Garrett, Haadsma, Brixie, Bolden, Sneller, Stone, Anthony, Manoogian, Witwer, Jones, Allor, Calley, Chirkun, Clemente, Crawford, Garza, Lasinski, Love, Mueller, Pohutsky, Sabo, Shannon, Sowerby, Warren and Yaroch offered the following resolution:

House Resolution No. 125.

A resolution to declare June 15, 2019, as Elder Abuse Awareness Day in the state of Michigan.

Whereas, On June 15, 2006, World Elder Abuse Awareness Day was launched by the International Network for the Prevention of Elder Abuse and the World Health Organization at the United Nations, among other international organizations; and

Whereas, Estimates show that more than 1 in 10 persons over age 60, or approximately 5,000,000 individuals, are victims of elder abuse each year; and

Whereas, The vast majority of the abuse, neglect, and exploitation of older adults in the United States goes unidentified, as only 1 in 25 cases of financial abuse of older adults is reported; and

Whereas, Elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation have no boundaries and cross all racial, social, class, gender, and geographic lines; and

Whereas, Older adults who are abused are 2 times more likely to die earlier than older adults of the same age who are not abused; and

Whereas, Public awareness has the potential to increase the identification and reporting of elder abuse by the public, professionals, and victims, and can act as a catalyst to promote issue-based education and long-term prevention; and

Whereas, Private individuals and public agencies must work together on the federal, state, and local levels to combat increasing occurrences of abuse, neglect, and exploitation crime and violence against vulnerable older adults and vulnerable adults, particularly in light of limited resources for vital protective services; and

Whereas, 2019 is the 13th celebration of World Elder Abuse Awareness Day; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the House of Representatives, That the members of this legislative body declare June 15, 2019, as Elder Abuse Awareness Day in Michigan; and be it further

Resolved that the House of Representatives recognizes judges, lawyers, adult protective services professionals, law enforcement officers, long-term care ombudsmen, social workers, health care providers, professional guardians, advocates for victims, and other professionals and agencies for their efforts to advance awareness of elder abuse. We encourage members of the public and professionals who work with older adults to act as catalysts to promote awareness and long-term prevention of elder abuse by reaching out to local adult protective services agencies, long-term care ombudsman programs, and the National Center on Elder Abuse, and by learning to recognize, detect, report, and respond to elder abuse.

The question being on the adoption of the resolution,

The resolution was adopted.

Reps. Hammoud, Rabhi, Guerra, Manoogian, Elder, Gay-Dagnogo, Anthony, Sabo, Chirkun, Garza, Hood, Lasinski, Sneller, Sowerby, Stone and Warren offered the following resolution:

House Resolution No. 126.

A resolution to memorialize the Congress of the United States to pursue humane and responsible immigration policies and oppose discriminatory policies and practices in immigration enforcement.

Whereas, The *Constitution of the United States* and the *Constitution of the State of Michigan of 1963* enumerate the basic tenants of freedom and values in American society. These documents provide an unyielding guarantee to the right not to be imprisoned without probable cause and the due process of law, the right to equal protection under the law, and the right to live free from discrimination based on race, religion, or national origin; and

Whereas, The state of Michigan is committed to the fair and effective administration of justice. Through body of law, the Michigan Legislature has worked purposefully to ensure that government protects the rights and liberties guaranteed in our constitutions and discourages the systematic violation of the rights of their constituents. State and local law enforcement officers are essential to ensuring our bodies of law and constitutional rights are protected in communities; and

Whereas, The Michigan Legislature opposes policies that contribute to community divisiveness by perpetuating negative and inaccurate stereotypes about immigrant communities. The Great Lakes State is home to countless individuals that were born outside the political jurisdiction of this state and this country but who now, by choice, live in our great state. Michigan Governor Gretchen Whitmer extolls the importance of Michigan's immigrant population and recognizes that immigrants are a positive force in our economic growth and cultural diversity; and

Whereas, The President of the United States signed an executive order in 2017 that threatens the constitutional rights of Michigan residents. This order disrupts the state of Michigan's reputation as a welcoming and tolerant people, and its broad and ambiguous deportation priorities may have a harmful impact on those that pose no threat to our communities, including immigrants who have been charged, but not yet convicted, of a crime. Moreover, this policy invites local law enforcement to unconstitutionally profile residents based on race and religion; and

Whereas, Immigration enforcement, including the execution of federal immigration detainers, is the responsibility of federal immigration authorities, not local law enforcement agencies. Detainer requests issued by federal immigration enforcement agents lack the procedural safeguards required by the U.S. Constitution's due process and unreasonable search and seizure clauses. Local law enforcement agencies who comply with these requests are at increased risk of being found liable for constitutional violations; and

Whereas, The U.S. government should not demand local law enforcement—whose job it is to protect all residents regardless of immigration status—perform a federal responsibility. Some municipalities in Michigan have adopted a policy or practice of declining to respond to detainer requests, or to comply with detainer requests only in limited circumstances, in order to preserve their own much-needed and limited resources for local priorities. Requiring local compliance with immigration detainer requests increases costs to counties and municipalities through extended imprisonments and damages for violating individual rights. Withholding federal dollars for departments refusing to take on this new role, as the President's executive order states, improperly places local law enforcement in the position of choosing between their budget and the constitutional rights of community residents; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the House of Representatives, That we memorialize the Congress of the United States to pursue humane and responsible immigration policies and oppose discriminatory policies and practices in immigration enforcement; and be it further

Resolved, That copies of this resolution be transmitted to the President of the United States Senate, the Speaker of the United States House of Representatives, and the members of the Michigan congressional delegation.

The resolution was referred to the Committee on Government Operations.

Messages from the Senate

The Speaker laid before the House

House Bill No. 4367, entitled

A bill to allow library employees or agents to carry and administer opioid antagonists in certain circumstances; to provide access to opioid antagonists by certain libraries and library employees or agents; and to limit the civil and criminal liability of certain libraries and library employees or agents for the possession, distribution, and use of opioid antagonists under certain circumstances.

(The bill was received from the Senate on June 12, with substitute (S-3), title amendment and immediate effect given by the Senate, consideration of which, under the rules, was postponed until today, see House Journal No. 60, p. 735.)

The question being on concurring in the substitute (S-3) made to the bill by the Senate,

The substitute (S-3) was concurred in, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 123

Yeas—109

Afendoulis	Filler	Kahle	Reilly
Albert	Frederick	Kennedy	Rendon
Alexander	Garrett	Koleszar	Robinson
Allor	Garza	Kuppa	Sabo
Anthony	Gay-Dagnogo	LaFave	Schroeder
Bellino	Glenn	LaGrand	Shannon
Berman	Green	Lasinski	Sheppard
Bolden	Greig	Leutheuser	Slagh
Bollin	Griffin	Liberati	Sneller
Brann	Guerra	Lightner	Sowerby
Brixie	Haadsma	Lilly	Stone
Byrd	Hall	Love	Tate
Calley	Hammoud	Lower	VanSingel
Cambensy	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Camilleri	Hernandez	Manoogian	Vaupel
Carter, B.	Hertel	Marino	Wakeman
Carter, T.	Hoadley	Markkanen	Warren
Chatfield	Hoitenga	Meerman	Webber
Cherry	Hood	Miller	Wendzel
Chirkun	Hope	Mueller	Wentworth
Clemente	Hornberger	Neeley	Whiteford
Cole	Howell	O'Malley	Whitsett
Coleman	Huizenga	Pagan	Wittenberg
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Witwer
Eisen	Johnson, C.	Peterson	Wozniak
Elder	Johnson, S.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	Yaroch
Farrington			

Nays—0

In The Chair: Wentworth

The House agreed to the title as amended.

The bill was referred to the Clerk for enrollment printing and presentation to the Governor.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4232, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the department of education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Pagan moved to amend the bill as follows:

- 1. Amend page 10, following line 10, by inserting:

“Sec. 120. ONE-TIME APPROPRIATIONS

Automated external defibrillators	\$ 250,000
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 250,000

Appropriated from:

State general fund/general purpose	\$ 250,000”
--	-------------

and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

- 2. Amend page 32, following line 27, by inserting:

“ONE-TIME APPROPRIATIONS

Sec. 1101. (1) From the funds appropriated in part 1 for automated external defibrillators, the department shall provide grants to school districts for the purchase of 1 automated external defibrillator per school district for use in a school operated by the school district that offers any of grades 9 to 12.

(2) A school district must meet all of the following requirements to be eligible to receive a grant under this section:

(a) Submit an application for a grant under this section to the department in the form and in a manner prescribed by the department.

(b) The board of the school district has adopted a resolution establishing that the school district will accomplish both of the following:

(i) Train at least 5 staff members, and ensure that at least 5 staff members maintain appropriate certification, in cardiopulmonary resuscitation and the use of an automated external defibrillator.

(ii) Pay for the ongoing maintenance and repair of each automated external defibrillator purchased from funding under this section, as necessary to maintain the unit in good working condition.

(c) The board of the school district has adopted and implemented a cardiac emergency response plan as required under section 19 of the fire prevention code, 1941 PA 207, MCL 29.19.

(3) A school district that receives a grant under this section may determine the school described in subsection (1) where the automated external defibrillator purchased with funds received under this section will be located.

(4) The department shall allocate grants under this section to school districts that meet the requirements under subsection (2) on a first come first serve basis.

Sec. 1102. From the funds appropriated in part 1 for automated external defibrillators, the unexpended funds for automated external defibrillators are designated as a work project appropriation, and any unencumbered or unallocated funds shall not lapse at the end of the fiscal year and shall be available for expenditures for work projects under this section until the work projects have been completed. The following is in compliance with section 451a of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1451a:

(a) The purpose of the work project is to provide grants to school districts for the purchase of 1 automated external defibrillator per school district for use in a school operated by the school district that offers any of grades 9 to 12.

(b) The work project will be accomplished by providing grants to school districts for the purchase of 1 automated external defibrillator per school district for use in a school operated by the school district that offers any of grades 9 to 12.

(c) The total estimated cost of the work project is \$250,000.00.

(d) The estimated completion date of the work project is September 30, 2021.”.

The motion prevailed and the amendments were adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Miller moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4232, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the department of education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 124

Yeas—58

Afendoulis	Frederick	Leutheuser	Rendon
Albert	Glenn	Lightner	Schroeder
Alexander	Green	Lilly	Sheppard
Allor	Griffin	Lower	Slagh
Bellino	Hall	Maddock	VanSingel
Berman	Hauck	Marino	VanWoerkom
Bollin	Hernandez	Markkanen	Vaupel
Brann	Hoitenga	Meerman	Wakeman
Calley	Hornberger	Miller	Webber
Chatfield	Howell	Mueller	Wendzel
Cole	Huizenga	O'Malley	Wentworth
Crawford	Iden	Pagan	Whiteford
Eisen	Johnson, S.	Paquette	Wozniak
Farrington	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch
Filler	LaFave		

Nays—51

Anthony	Ellison	Jones	Robinson
Bolden	Garrett	Kennedy	Sabo
Brixie	Garza	Koleszar	Shannon
Byrd	Gay-Dagnogo	Kuppa	Sneller
Cambensy	Greig	LaGrand	Sowerby
Camilleri	Guerra	Lasinski	Stone
Carter, B.	Haadsma	Liberati	Tate
Carter, T.	Hammoud	Love	Warren
Cherry	Hertel	Manoogian	Whitsett
Chirkun	Hoadley	Neeley	Wittenberg
Clemente	Hood	Peterson	Witwer
Coleman	Hope	Pohutsky	Yancey
Elder	Johnson, C.	Rabhi	

In The Chair: Wentworth

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4233, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the department of environmental quality for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Manoogian moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 16, following line 16, by inserting:

“Drinking water protection and innovation initiatives—3.0 FTE positions 120,000,000”
 and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

2. Amend page 34, following line 19, by inserting:

“Sec. 803. From the funds appropriated in part 1 for drinking water protection and innovation initiatives, the following allocations shall occur.

(a) Minimum of \$37,500,000.00 for implementation of the lead and copper rule, including but not limited to, lead service line replacement and support of local education efforts by the Water Supply Advisory Councils established in R 325.10410(7).

(b) Minimum of \$30,000,000.00 to abate and cleanup emerging contaminants as well as invest in technologies to address contaminants in public water systems.

(c) Minimum of \$40,000,000.00 to provide grant funding to eligible applicants applying for Drinking Water Revolving Loan Funds.

(d) Up to \$7,500,000.00 for grants to communities to enhance asset management plans and/or for the development of sustainable water rate plans, and/or for watershed plans.

(e) Up to \$5,000,000.00 to support research and innovation, including but not limited to optimizing corrosion control treatment, optimizing distribution systems, and enhancing data building capacity of water systems.

Sec. 804. From the minimum \$37,500,000.00 allocated in subsection (a) of section 803, up to \$1,000,000.00 will be allocated to local Water Supply Advisory Councils for public awareness and education efforts related to lead and other potential drinking water contaminants. Of the maximum \$1,000,000.00 allocation, grants to Water Supply Advisory Councils shall not exceed \$25,000.00 each. Of the remaining funds from subsection (a), grants will be issued for up to \$2,000,000.00 for lead service line replacements in areas where the 90th percentile exceeds 10 parts per billion.

Sec. 805. From the funds allocated in subsection (b) in section 803, grants shall not exceed \$5,000,000.00 each.

Sec. 806. From the funds allocated in subsection (c) in section 803, funding will be provided for drinking water infrastructure upgrades included in the community’s asset management plans. Applicants will be eligible for grant funding for the lower of 30 percent of the total project cost or \$2,000,000.00 per year.

Sec. 807. From the funds allocated in subsections (d) and (e) in section 803, grants shall be awarded on a competitive basis and shall not exceed \$500,000.00 for an individual grant applicant. If a region applies on behalf of multiple community water supplies, the maximum grant shall not exceed \$2,000,000.00.

Sec. 808. The unexpended funds appropriated in part 1 for the drinking water protection and innovation initiatives are designated as a work project appropriation, and any unencumbered or unallotted funds shall not lapse at the end of the fiscal year and shall be available for expenditures for projects under this section until the projects have been completed. The following is in compliance with section 451a of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1451a:

- (a) The purpose of the project to be carried forward is to support drinking water protection and innovation.
- (b) The project will be accomplished by utilizing state employees or contracts with service providers, or both.
- (c) The total estimated cost of the project is \$120,000,000.00.
- (d) The tentative completion date is September 30, 2023.”

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Witwer moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 16, following line 16, by inserting:

“PFAS remediation..... \$ 20,000,000”

and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Cherry moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 7, line 16, by striking out “2,963,000” and inserting “3,269,500”.

2. Amend page 8, line 1, by striking out “800,000” and inserting “1,000,000”.

3. Amend page 11, line 3, by striking out “120.0” and inserting “125.0”.

4. Amend page 11, line 4, by striking out “17,661,100” and inserting “18,611,100”.

5. Amend page 11, line 20, by striking out “119,500,000” and inserting “120,000,000”.

6. Amend page 16, following line 16, by inserting:

“Drinking water infrastructure—2.0 FTE positions	4,000,000
Lead remediation grants	2,000,000”

and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

7. Amend page 34, following line 19, by inserting:

“Sec. 801. The unexpended funds appropriated in part 1 for drinking water infrastructure are designated as a work project appropriation, and any unencumbered or unallotted funds shall not lapse at the end of the fiscal year and shall be available for expenditures for projects under this section until the projects have been completed. The following is in compliance with section 451a of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1451a:

(a) The purpose of the project is to support infrastructure for drinking water systems.

(b) The project will be accomplished by contract by utilizing state employees or contracts with service providers, or both.

(c) The total estimated cost of the project is \$4,000,000.00.

(d) The tentative completion date is September 30, 2024.

Sec. 802. From the funds appropriated in part 1 for drinking water infrastructure, grants shall be awarded to drinking water systems for contaminant remediation efforts or connection to an alternate system. The level of funding provided for each grant shall be determined based on the population served by the system. A grant to an individual system shall not exceed \$2,000,000.00 and shall include a 20% local match unless waived by the water asset management council based on affordability criteria established by the water asset management council.”.

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving therefor.

Rep. Koleszar moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 16, following line 16, by inserting:

“Landfill enforcement—4.0 FTE positions..... 1,000,000”

and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Allor moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4233, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the department of environmental quality for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 125

Yeas—57

Afendoulis	Frederick	LaFave	Rendon
Albert	Glenn	Leutheuser	Schroeder
Alexander	Green	Lightner	Sheppard
Allor	Griffin	Lilly	Slagh
Bellino	Hall	Lower	VanSingel
Berman	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Bollin	Hernandez	Marino	Vaupel
Brann	Hoitenga	Markkanen	Wakeman
Calley	Hornberger	Meerman	Webber
Chatfield	Howell	Miller	Wendzel
Cole	Huizenga	Mueller	Wentworth
Crawford	Iden	O’Malley	Whiteford
Eisen	Johnson, S.	Paquette	Wozniak
Farrington	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch
Filler			

Nays—52

Anthony	Ellison	Jones	Rabhi
Bolden	Garrett	Kennedy	Robinson
Brixie	Garza	Koleszar	Sabo
Byrd	Gay-Dagnogo	Kuppa	Shannon
Cambensy	Greig	LaGrand	Sneller
Camilleri	Guerra	Lasinski	Sowerby
Carter, B.	Haadsma	Liberati	Stone

Carter, T.	Hammoud	Love	Tate
Cherry	Hertel	Manoogian	Warren
Chirkun	Hoadley	Neeley	Whitsett
Clemente	Hood	Pagan	Wittenberg
Coleman	Hope	Peterson	Witwer
Elder	Johnson, C.	Pohutsky	Yancey

In The Chair: Wentworth

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4241, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the department of natural resources for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-3) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-3) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Cambensy moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 9, line 6, by striking out “43,610,100” and inserting “44,710,100” and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. LaFave moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 24, following line 1, by inserting:

“Sec. 505. As a condition of expenditure of appropriations for aircraft, the department shall not fly aircraft below 1,000 feet over the Upper Peninsula during October and November, except for takeoffs and landings, unless engaged in a search for a missing person. The department shall submit a report verifying the search to the legislators in whose district the search took place.”

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Cole moved to reconsider the vote by which the House did not adopt the amendment.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

The question being on the adoption of the amendment offered by Rep. LaFave,

The amendment was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Allor moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4241, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the department of natural resources for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 126

Yeas—58

Afendoulis	Filler	LaFave	Rendon
Albert	Frederick	Leutheuser	Schroeder

Alexander	Glenn	Lightner	Sheppard
Allor	Green	Lilly	Slagh
Bellino	Griffin	Lower	VanSingel
Berman	Hall	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Bollin	Hauck	Marino	Vaupel
Brann	Hernandez	Markkanen	Wakeman
Calley	Hoitenga	Meerman	Webber
Chatfield	Hornberger	Miller	Wendzel
Cherry	Howell	Mueller	Wentworth
Cole	Huizenga	O'Malley	Whiteford
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Wozniak
Eisen	Johnson, S.	Reilly	Yaroch
Farrington	Kahle		

Nays—51

Anthony	Garrett	Kennedy	Robinson
Bolden	Garza	Koleszar	Sabo
Brixie	Gay-Dagnogo	Kuppa	Shannon
Byrd	Greig	LaGrand	Sneller
Cambensy	Guerra	Lasinski	Sowerby
Camilleri	Haadsma	Liberati	Stone
Carter, B.	Hammoud	Love	Tate
Carter, T.	Hertel	Manoogian	Warren
Chirkun	Hoadley	Neeley	Whitsett
Clemente	Hood	Pagan	Wittenberg
Coleman	Hope	Peterson	Witwer
Elder	Johnson, C.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	

In The Chair: Wentworth

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4246, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the state transportation department for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Sowerby moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 9, line 26, by striking out all of sections 114, 115, and 116 and inserting:

“Sec. 114. LOCAL BUS TRANSIT

Local bus operating	\$ 196,750,000
Nonurban operating/capital	<u>30,027,900</u>
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 226,777,900

Appropriated from:

Federal revenues:	
Federal aid – transportation programs	28,027,900

Special revenue funds:	
Local funds.....	2,000,000
Comprehensive transportation fund.....	196,750,000
State general fund/general purpose.....	\$ 0
Sec. 115. INTERCITY PASSENGER AND FREIGHT	
Full-time equated classified positions.....	39.0
Detroit/Wayne County port authority.....	\$ 468,200
Freight property management.....	1,000,000
Intercity services.....	9,860,000
Marine passenger service.....	5,900,000
Office of rail--39.0 FTE positions.....	6,656,500
Rail operations and infrastructure.....	<u>95,566,700</u>
GROSS APPROPRIATION.....	\$ 119,451,400
Appropriated from:	
Federal revenues:	
Federal aid – transportation programs.....	14,500,000
Special revenue funds:	
Local funds.....	760,000
Private funds.....	900,000
Comprehensive transportation fund.....	94,344,400
Intercity bus equipment and facility fund.....	100,000
Michigan transportation fund.....	2,086,300
Rail freight fund.....	6,000,000
State trunkline fund.....	760,700
State general fund/general purpose.....	\$ 0
Sec. 116. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT	
Municipal credit program.....	\$ 2,000,000
Service initiatives.....	10,589,200
Specialized services.....	23,313,900
Transit capital.....	67,900,600
Van pooling.....	<u>195,000</u>
GROSS APPROPRIATION.....	\$ 103,998,700
Appropriated from:	
Federal revenues:	
Federal aid – transportation programs.....	26,850,000
Special revenue funds:	
Local funds.....	5,760,000
Comprehensive transportation fund.....	71,388,700
State general fund/general purpose.....	\$ 0”

and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Cherry moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 28, following line 20, by inserting:

“Sec. 372. (1) As used in this section:

(a) “Construction mechanic” means a skilled or unskilled mechanic, laborer, worker, helper, assistant, or apprentice working on a state project but shall not include executive, administrative, professional, office, or custodial employees.

(b) “State or local project” means new construction, alteration, repair, installation, painting, decorating, completion, demolition, conditioning, reconditioning, or improvement of public buildings, schools, or works.

(2) When selecting a contractor for a state or local project that includes the labor of construction mechanics the department shall give preference to contractors that maintain or participate in an apprenticeship program that is certified by the United States Department of Labor.

(3) When selecting a contractor for a state or local project the department must give preference to contractors that will have at least 75% of their employees residing within 60 miles of the proposed project.”.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Bollin moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 29, following line 3, by inserting:

“Sec. 379 (1). From funds appropriated in part 1, the department shall perform a study of the feasibility of tolling in this state. The study shall include an analysis of all of the following:

- (a) The use of tolling in other states.
- (b) Federal regulations related to tolling.

- (c) Opportunities for tolling in Michigan.
- (d) The process for establishing tolled road and bridge facilities in this state.
- (e) The timeline for establishing tolled road and bridge facilities in this state.
- (f) Costs associated with establishing tolled road and bridge facilities in this state.

(2). The department shall submit the study to the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on transportation and the house and senate fiscal agencies by March 1, 2020.”.

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Hoadley moved to amend the bill as follows:

- 1. Amend page 9, line 27, by striking out “\$162,137,500” and inserting “\$196,750,000”.
- 2. Amend page 10, line 1, by striking out all of line 1 and adjusting the subtotals, totals, and section 201 accordingly.

The motion prevailed and the amendments were adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. LaFave moved to amend the bill as follows:

- 1. Amend page 30, line 15, by striking out all of subsection (4) and inserting:

“(4) Except as provided in subsection (5), the department may not expend funds appropriated in part 1 for the transport of legislators or legislative staff on state-owned aircraft without prior approval from the senate majority leader or the speaker of the house of representatives and only when the aircraft is already scheduled by state agencies on related official state business.

(5) The department may expend funds appropriated in part 1 for the transport of legislators or legislative staff in state-owned aircraft if all following conditions apply:

- (a) The legislator requesting transportation represents a legislative district located wholly in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan.
- (b) Travel is between Lansing and a centrally located airport in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan.
- (c) Travel is between the legislator’s district and Lansing.”.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Maddock moved to amend the bill as follows:

- 1. Amend page 31, line 2, after “revenue.” by inserting “An expenditure for staff resources used in connection with project activities, which expenditure is subject to full and prompt reimbursement from Canada, shall not be considered an expenditure of state transportation revenue.”.
- 2. Amend page 31, line 7, by striking out all of section 385 and inserting:

“Sec. 385. (1) The department shall submit monthly reports to the state budget director, the speaker of the house of representatives, the house of representatives minority leader, the senate majority leader, the senate minority leader, the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on transportation, and the house and senate fiscal agencies on all of the following:

- (a) All expenditures made by the state related to the Gordie Howe Bridge.
 - (b) All reimbursements made by Canada under section 384(1) of this part to the state for expenditures for staff resources used in connection with project activities.
- (2) The reports required under subsection (1) shall be submitted on or before December 1, 2019. The initial report and shall cover the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019.”.

The motion prevailed and the amendments were adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Maddock moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of
Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4246, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the state transportation department for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 127

Yeas—57

Afendoulis
 Albert

Frederick
 Glenn

LaFave
 Leutheuser

Rendon
 Schroeder

Alexander	Green	Lightner	Sheppard
Allor	Griffin	Lilly	Slagh
Bellino	Hall	Lower	VanSingel
Berman	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Bollin	Hernandez	Marino	Vaupel
Brann	Hoitenga	Markkanen	Wakeman
Calley	Hornberger	Meerman	Webber
Chatfield	Howell	Miller	Wendzel
Cole	Huizenga	Mueller	Wentworth
Crawford	Iden	O'Malley	Whiteford
Eisen	Johnson, S.	Paquette	Wozniak
Farrington	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch
Filler			

Nays—52

Anthony	Ellison	Jones	Rabhi
Bolden	Garrett	Kennedy	Robinson
Brixie	Garza	Koleszar	Sabo
Byrd	Gay-Dagnogo	Kuppa	Shannon
Cambensy	Greig	LaGrand	Sneller
Camilleri	Guerra	Lasinski	Sowerby
Carter, B.	Haadisma	Liberati	Stone
Carter, T.	Hammoud	Love	Tate
Cherry	Hertel	Manoogian	Warren
Chirkun	Hoadley	Neeley	Whitsett
Clemente	Hood	Pagan	Wittenberg
Coleman	Hope	Peterson	Witwer
Elder	Johnson, C.	Pohutsky	Yancey

In The Chair: Wentworth

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4242, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 11 and 17b (MCL 388.1611 and 388.1617b), section 11 as amended by 2018 PA 586 and section 17b as amended by 2007 PA 137.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-3) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations.

The substitute (H-3) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Miller moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 34, line 2, by striking out "\$56,000,000.00" and inserting "\$66,000,000.00".
 2. Amend page 307, line 16, by striking out "\$13,258,196,300.00" and inserting "\$13,298,196,300.00".
- The motion prevailed and the amendments were adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Brann moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 113, line 14, after "programs" by inserting "**for 2019-2020**".
2. Amend page 113, line 16, by striking out "**for 2019-2020.**" and inserting "**from the state school aid fund and an amount not to exceed \$85,000,000.00 from the general fund.**".
3. Amend page 114, line 9, after "exceed" by striking out "\$242,600,000.00" and inserting "**\$327,600,000.00**" and adjusting the totals in section 11 and enacting section 1 accordingly.

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Brenda Carter moved to substitute (H-2) the bill.

The motion did not prevail and the substitute (H-2) was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Miller moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4242, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled “The state school aid act of 1979,” by amending sections 11 and 17b (MCL 388.1611 and 388.1617b), section 11 as amended by 2018 PA 586 and section 17b as amended by 2007 PA 137.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 128

Yeas—56

Afendoulis	Frederick	LaFave	Rendon
Albert	Glenn	Leutheuser	Schroeder
Alexander	Green	Lightner	Sheppard
Allor	Griffin	Lilly	Slagh
Bellino	Hall	Lower	VanSingel
Bollin	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Brann	Hernandez	Marino	Vaupel
Calley	Hoitenga	Markkanen	Wakeman
Chatfield	Hornberger	Meerman	Webber
Cole	Howell	Miller	Wendzel
Crawford	Huizenga	Mueller	Wentworth
Eisen	Iden	O’Malley	Whiteford
Farrington	Johnson, S.	Paquette	Wozniak
Filler	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch

Nays—53

Anthony	Ellison	Jones	Rabhi
Berman	Garrett	Kennedy	Robinson
Bolden	Garza	Koleszar	Sabo
Brixie	Gay-Dagnogo	Kuppa	Shannon
Byrd	Greig	LaGrand	Sneller
Cambensy	Guerra	Lasinski	Sowerby
Camilleri	Haadisma	Liberati	Stone
Carter, B.	Hammoud	Love	Tate
Carter, T.	Hertel	Manoogian	Warren
Cherry	Hoadley	Neeley	Whitsett
Chirkun	Hood	Pagan	Wittenberg
Clemente	Hope	Peterson	Witwer
Coleman	Johnson, C.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Elder			

In The Chair: Wentworth

The question being on agreeing to the title of the bill,

Rep. Cole moved to amend the title to read as follows:

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 4, 6, 8b, 11, 11a, 11j, 11k, 11m, 11s, 15, 20, 20d, 20f, 21h, 22a, 22b, 22d, 22m, 24, 24a, 25e, 25f, 26a, 26b, 26c, 31a, 31d, 31f, 31j, 31n, 32d, 32p, 35a, 35b, 39, 39a, 41, 51a, 51c, 51d, 53a, 54, 54b, 54d, 56, 61a, 61b, 61c, 61d, 62, 64d, 65, 67, 74, 81, 94, 94a, 95a, 95b, 98, 99h, 99s, 99t, 99u, 99w, 99x, 101, 102d, 104, 104b, 104c, 104d, 107, 147, 147a, 147c, 147e, 152a, and 152b (MCL 388.1604, 388.1606, 388.1608b, 388.1611, 388.1611a, 388.1611j, 388.1611k, 388.1611m, 388.1611s, 388.1615, 388.1620, 388.1620d, 388.1620f, 388.1621h, 388.1622a, 388.1622b, 388.1622d, 388.1622m, 388.1624, 388.1624a, 388.1625e, 388.1625f, 388.1626a, 388.1626b, 388.1626c, 388.1631a, 388.1631d, 388.1631f, 388.1631j, 388.1631n, 388.1632d, 388.1632p, 388.1635a, 388.1635b, 388.1639, 388.1639a, 388.1641, 388.1651a, 388.1651c, 388.1651d, 388.1653a, 388.1654, 388.1654b, 388.1654d, 388.1656, 388.1661a, 388.1661b, 388.1661c, 388.1661d, 388.1662, 388.1664d, 388.1665, 388.1667, 388.1674, 388.1681, 388.1694, 388.1694a, 388.1695a, 388.1695b, 388.1698, 388.1699h, 388.1699s, 388.1699t, 388.1699u, 388.1699w, 388.1699x, 388.1701, 388.1702d, 388.1704, 388.1704b, 388.1704c, 388.1704d, 388.1707, 388.1747, 388.1747a, 388.1747c, 388.1747e, 388.1752a, and 388.1752b), sections 4 and 8b as amended by 2017 PA 108, sections 6, 11, 31a, 31j, 32d, 35a, 35b, 39a, 99h, and 99u as amended and sections 31n, 99w, and 99x as added by 2018 PA 586, sections 11a, 11j, 11k, 11m, 11s, 15, 20, 20d, 20f, 21h, 22a, 22b, 22d, 22m, 24, 24a, 25e, 25f, 26a, 26b, 26c, 31d, 31f, 32p, 39, 41, 51a, 51c, 51d, 53a, 54, 54b, 56, 61a, 61b, 61c, 62, 64d, 65, 67, 74, 81, 94, 94a, 95b, 98, 99s, 99t, 102d, 104, 104b, 104c, 104d, 107, 147, 147a, 147c, 147e, 152a, and 152b as amended and sections 54d and 61d as added by 2018 PA 265, section 95a as amended by 2015 PA 85, and section 101 as amended by 2019 PA 11, and by adding sections 32e, 35c, 35d, 35e, 54e, 61j, 67a, 67b, 97, 97a, 97b, and 99a; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

The motion prevailed.

The House agreed to the title as amended.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4236, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 236 and 236a (MCL 388.1836 and 388.1836a), sections 236 and 236a as amended by 2018 PA 265.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Kuppa moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 20, by striking out all of subsection (2) and inserting:

"(2) Amounts appropriated for public universities are as follows:

(a) The appropriation for Central Michigan University is ~~\$87,415,000.00, \$85,654,400.00 for operations and \$1,760,600.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$91,277,700.00, \$87,415,000.00 for operations, \$2,622,500.00 for student affordability funding, and \$1,240,200.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(b) The appropriation for Eastern Michigan University is ~~\$76,979,300.00, \$75,169,900.00 for operations and \$1,809,400.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$79,423,200.00, \$76,979,300.00 for operations, \$2,309,400.00 for student affordability funding, and \$134,500.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(c) The appropriation for Ferris State University is ~~\$54,950,700.00, \$53,595,500.00 for operations and \$1,355,200.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$57,349,600.00, \$54,950,700.00 for operations, \$1,648,500.00 for student affordability funding, and \$750,400.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(d) The appropriation for Grand Valley State University is ~~\$72,056,600.00, \$70,100,100.00 for operations and \$1,956,500.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$74,987,200.00, \$72,056,600.00 for operations, \$2,161,700.00 for student affordability funding, and \$768,900.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(e) The appropriation for Lake Superior State University is ~~\$13,987,000.00, \$13,775,000.00 for operations and \$212,000.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$14,670,300.00, \$13,987,000.00 for operations, \$419,600.00 for student affordability funding, and \$263,700.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(f) The appropriation for Michigan State University is ~~\$350,703,300.00, \$281,239,100.00 for operations, \$5,035,100.00 for performance funding, \$34,591,400.00 for MSU AgBioResearch, and \$29,837,700.00 for MSU Extension.~~ **\$360,924,700.00, \$286,274,200.00 for operations, \$8,588,200.00 for student affordability funding, \$988,900.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment, \$34,937,300.00 for MSU AgBioResearch, and \$30,136,100.00 for MSU Extension.**

(g) The appropriation for Michigan Technological University is ~~\$49,949,600.00, \$49,052,200.00 for operations and \$897,400.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$51,781,100.00, \$49,949,600.00 for operations, \$1,498,500.00 for student affordability funding, and \$333,000.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(h) The appropriation for Northern Michigan University is ~~\$47,998,400.00, \$47,137,400.00 for operations and \$861,000.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$50,078,500.00, \$47,998,400.00 for operations, \$1,440,000.00 for student affordability funding, and \$640,100.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(i) The appropriation for Oakland University is ~~\$52,819,200.00, \$51,235,900.00 for operations and \$1,583,300.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$54,580,100.00, \$52,819,200.00 for operations, \$1,584,600.00 for student affordability funding, and \$176,300.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(j) The appropriation for Saginaw Valley State University is ~~\$30,528,000.00, \$29,766,100.00 for operations and \$761,900.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$31,583,300.00, \$30,528,000.00 for operations, \$915,800.00 for student affordability funding, and \$139,500.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(k) The appropriation for University of Michigan – Ann Arbor is ~~\$320,782,400.00, \$314,589,100.00 for operations and \$6,193,300.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$330,680,300.00, \$320,782,400.00 for operations, \$9,623,400.00 for student affordability funding, and \$274,500.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(l) The appropriation for University of Michigan – Dearborn is ~~\$26,071,800.00, \$25,421,900.00 for operations and \$649,900.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$26,922,100.00, \$26,071,800.00 for operations, \$782,200.00 for student affordability funding, and \$68,100.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(m) The appropriation for University of Michigan – Flint is ~~\$23,585,400.00, \$23,061,800.00 for operations and \$523,600.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$24,459,400.00, \$23,585,400.00 for operations, \$707,600.00 for student affordability funding, and \$166,400.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(n) The appropriation for Wayne State University is ~~\$202,363,200.00, \$199,169,800.00 for operations and \$3,193,400.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$208,598,500.00, \$202,363,200.00 for operations, \$6,070,900.00 for student affordability funding, and \$164,400.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(o) The appropriation for Western Michigan University is ~~\$111,151,000.00, \$109,376,800.00 for operations and \$1,774,200.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$115,063,700.00, \$111,151,000.00 for operations, \$3,334,500.00 for student affordability funding, and \$578,200.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.”** and adjusting the subtotals and totals in section 236 and enacting section 1 accordingly.

2. Amend page 28, line 4, after “for” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
3. Amend page 29, line 10, after “for” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
4. Amend page 30, line 3, after “for” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
5. Amend page 30, line 22, after “Any” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
6. Amend page 30, line 25, after “for” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
7. Amend page 30, line 27, after “their” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
8. Amend page 31, line 5, after “any” by striking out “performance” and inserting “**student affordability**”.
9. Amend page 31, line 9, by striking out all of subsection (4) and inserting:

“(4) student affordability funding amounts described in section 236 are distributed such that each public university receives a 3 percent increase in operations funding between fiscal year 2018-2019 and fiscal year 2019-2020.”

10. Amend page 32, line 1, by striking out all of subsection (5).

11. Amend page 32, line 13, by striking out all of subsection (6).

12. Amend page 32, line 18, by striking out all of subsection (7), and renumbering the remaining subsection.

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Brann moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 20, by striking out all of subsection (2) and inserting “(2) Amounts appropriated for public universities are as follows:

(a) The appropriation for Central Michigan University is ~~\$87,415,000.00, \$85,654,400.00 for operations and \$1,760,600.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$81,831,000.00, \$87,415,000.00 for operations, (\$6,824,200.00) for performance funding, and \$1,240,200.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(b) The appropriation for Eastern Michigan University is ~~\$76,979,300.00, \$75,169,900.00 for operations and \$1,809,400.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$72,449,400.00, \$76,979,300.00 for operations, (\$4,664,400.00) for performance funding, and \$134,500.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(c) The appropriation for Ferris State University is ~~\$54,950,700.00, \$53,595,500.00 for operations and \$1,355,200.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$51,580,800.00, \$54,950,700.00 for operations, (\$4,120,300.00) for performance funding, and \$750,400.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(d) The appropriation for Grand Valley State University is ~~\$72,056,600.00, \$70,100,100.00 for operations and \$1,956,500.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$66,964,800.00, \$72,056,600.00 for operations, (\$5,860,700.00) for performance funding, and \$768,900.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(e) The appropriation for Lake Superior State University is ~~\$13,987,000.00, \$13,775,000.00 for operations and \$212,000.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$13,741,800.00, \$13,987,000.00 for operations, (\$508,900.00) for performance funding, and \$263,700.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(f) The appropriation for Michigan State University is ~~\$350,703,300.00, \$281,239,100.00 for operations, \$5,035,100.00 for performance funding, \$34,591,400.00 for MSU AgBioResearch, and \$29,837,700.00 for MSU Extension.~~ **\$338,222,000.00, \$286,274,200.00 for operations, (\$14,114,500.00) for performance funding, \$988,900.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment, \$34,937,300.00 for MSU AgBioResearch, and \$30,136,100.00 for MSU Extension.**

(g) The appropriation for Michigan Technological University is ~~\$49,949,600.00, \$49,052,200.00 for operations and \$897,400.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$47,724,400.00, \$49,949,600.00 for operations, (\$2,558,200.00) for performance funding, and \$333,000.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(h) The appropriation for Northern Michigan University is ~~\$47,998,400.00, \$47,137,400.00 for operations and \$861,000.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$46,250,900.00, \$47,998,400.00 for operations, (\$2,387,600.00) for performance funding, and \$640,100.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(i) The appropriation for Oakland University is ~~\$52,819,200.00, \$51,235,900.00 for operations and \$1,583,300.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$46,932,400.00, \$52,819,200.00 for operations, (\$6,063,100.00) for performance funding, and \$176,300.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(j) The appropriation for Saginaw Valley State University is ~~\$30,528,000.00, \$29,766,100.00 for operations and \$761,900.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$28,775,000.00, \$30,528,000.00 for operations, (\$1,892,500.00) for performance funding, and \$139,500.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(k) The appropriation for University of Michigan – Ann Arbor is ~~\$320,782,400.00, \$314,589,100.00 for operations and \$6,193,300.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$306,005,600.00, \$320,782,400.00 for operations, (\$15,051,300.00) for performance funding, and \$274,500.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(l) The appropriation for University of Michigan – Dearborn is ~~\$26,071,800.00, \$25,421,900.00 for operations and \$649,900.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$23,347,900.00, \$26,071,800.00 for operations, (\$2,792,000.00) for performance funding, and \$68,100.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(m) The appropriation for University of Michigan – Flint is ~~\$23,585,400.00, \$23,061,800.00 for operations and \$523,600.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$21,841,500.00, \$23,585,400.00 for operations, (\$1,910,300.00) for performance funding, and \$166,400.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(n) The appropriation for Wayne State University is ~~\$202,363,200.00, \$199,169,800.00 for operations and \$3,193,400.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$193,321,400.00, \$202,363,200.00 for operations, (\$9,206,200.00) for performance funding, and \$164,400.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.**

(o) The appropriation for Western Michigan University is ~~\$111,151,000.00, \$109,376,800.00 for operations and \$1,774,200.00 for performance funding.~~ **\$104,683,400.00, \$111,151,000.00 for operations, (\$7,045,800.00) for performance funding, and \$578,200.00 for indian tuition waiver shortfall payment.”** and adjusting the subtotals and totals in section 236 and enacting section 1 accordingly.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. LaFave moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 37, following line 15, by inserting:

“Sec. 265f. Appropriations to public universities in section 236 for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020 for operations funding shall be reduced by 25% if a public university receives a yellow rating from the foundation for individual rights in education. operations funding shall be reduced by 50% if a public university receives a red rating from the foundation for individual rights in education.”

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. VanSingel moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4236, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled “The state school aid act of 1979,” by amending sections 236 and 236a (MCL 388.1836 and 388.1836a), sections 236 and 236a as amended by 2018 PA 265.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 129**Yeas—56**

Afendoulis	Frederick	LaFave	Rendon
Albert	Glenn	Leutheuser	Schroeder
Alexander	Green	Lightner	Sheppard
Allor	Griffin	Lilly	Slagh
Bellino	Hall	Lower	VanSingel
Bollin	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Brann	Hernandez	Marino	Vaupel
Calley	Hoitenga	Markkanen	Wakeman
Chatfield	Hornberger	Meerman	Webber
Cole	Howell	Miller	Wendzel
Crawford	Huizenga	Mueller	Wentworth
Eisen	Iden	O'Malley	Whiteford
Farrington	Johnson, S.	Paquette	Wozniak
Filler	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch

Nays—53

Anthony	Ellison	Jones	Rabhi
Berman	Garrett	Kennedy	Robinson
Bolden	Garza	Koleszar	Sabo
Brixie	Gay-Dagnogo	Kuppa	Shannon
Byrd	Greig	LaGrand	Sneller
Cambensy	Guerra	Lasinski	Sowerby
Camilleri	Haadsma	Liberati	Stone
Carter, B.	Hammond	Love	Tate
Carter, T.	Hertel	Manoogian	Warren
Cherry	Hoadley	Neeley	Whitsett
Chirkun	Hood	Pagan	Wittenberg
Clemente	Hope	Peterson	Witwer
Coleman	Johnson, C.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Elder			

In The Chair: Wentworth

The question being on agreeing to the title of the bill,

Rep. Cole moved to amend the title to read as follows:

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 236, 236a, 236b, 236c, 237, 241, 245, 245a, 251, 252, 256, 263, 264, 265, 265a, 265b, 265c, 265d, 267, 268, 269, 270, 274, 274c, 276, 277, 278, 279, 280, 281, 282, 283, and 289 (MCL 388.1836, 388.1836a, 388.1836b, 388.1836c, 388.1837, 388.1841, 388.1845, 388.1845a, 388.1851, 388.1852, 388.1856, 388.1863, 388.1864, 388.1865, 388.1865a, 388.1865b, 388.1865c, 388.1865d, 388.1867, 388.1868, 388.1869, 388.1870, 388.1874, 388.1874c, 388.1876, 388.1877, 388.1878, 388.1879, 388.1880, 388.1881, 388.1882, 388.1883, and 388.1889), sections 236, 236a, 236b, 236c, 241, 245, 251, 252, 256, 263, 264, 265a, 267, 268, 269, 270, 274, 274c, 276, 277, 278, 279, 280, 281, 282, and 289 as amended and sections 245a, 265b, 265c, and 265d as added by 2018 PA 265, section 237 as amended by 2012 PA 201, section 265 as amended by 2018 PA 586, and section 283 as amended by 2017 PA 108.

The motion prevailed.

The House agreed to the title as amended.

The Speaker Pro Tempore called Associate Speaker Pro Tempore Lilly to the Chair.

Senate Bill No. 200, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled “Public health code,” by amending section 17744b (MCL 333.17744b), as amended by 2016 PA 384.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 130

Yeas—109

Afendoulis	Filler	Kahle	Reilly
Albert	Frederick	Kennedy	Rendon
Alexander	Garrett	Koleszar	Robinson
Allor	Garza	Kuppa	Sabo
Anthony	Gay-Dagnogo	LaFave	Schroeder
Bellino	Glenn	LaGrand	Shannon
Berman	Green	Lasinski	Sheppard
Bolden	Greig	Leutheuser	Slagh
Bollin	Griffin	Liberati	Sneller
Brann	Guerra	Lightner	Sowerby
Brixie	Haadsma	Lilly	Stone
Byrd	Hall	Love	Tate
Calley	Hammoud	Lower	VanSingel
Cambensy	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Camilleri	Hernandez	Manoogian	Vaupel
Carter, B.	Hertel	Marino	Wakeman
Carter, T.	Hoadley	Markkanen	Warren
Chatfield	Hoitenga	Meerman	Webber
Cherry	Hood	Miller	Wendzel
Chirkun	Hope	Mueller	Wentworth
Clemente	Hornberger	Neeley	Whiteford
Cole	Howell	O’Malley	Whitsett
Coleman	Huizenga	Pagan	Wittenberg
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Witwer
Eisen	Johnson, C.	Peterson	Wozniak
Elder	Johnson, S.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	Yaroch
Farrington			

Nays—0

In The Chair: Lilly

Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, the full title of the act shall be inserted to read as follows:

“An act to protect and promote the public health; to codify, revise, consolidate, classify, and add to the laws relating to public health; to provide for the prevention and control of diseases and disabilities; to provide for the classification, administration, regulation, financing, and maintenance of personal, environmental, and other health services and activities; to create or continue, and prescribe the powers and duties of, departments, boards, commissions, councils, committees, task forces, and other agencies; to prescribe the powers and duties of governmental entities and officials; to regulate occupations, facilities, and agencies affecting the public health; to regulate health maintenance organizations and certain third party administrators and insurers; to provide for the imposition of a regulatory fee; to provide for the levy of taxes against certain health facilities or agencies; to promote the efficient and economical delivery of health care services, to provide for the appropriate utilization of health care facilities and services, and to provide for the closure of hospitals or consolidation of hospitals or services; to provide for the collection and use of data and information; to provide for the transfer of property; to provide certain immunity from liability; to regulate and prohibit the sale and offering for sale of drug paraphernalia under certain circumstances; to provide for the implementation of federal law; to provide for penalties and remedies; to provide for sanctions for violations of this act and local ordinances; to provide for an appropriation and supplements; to repeal certain acts and parts of acts; to repeal certain parts of this act; and to repeal certain parts of this act on specific dates,”

The House agreed to the full title.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be given immediate effect.
 The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Senate Bill No. 282, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled “Public health code,” by amending section 20919 (MCL 333.20919), as amended by 2018 PA 383.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 131

Yeas—109

Afendoulis	Filler	Kahle	Reilly
Albert	Frederick	Kennedy	Rendon
Alexander	Garrett	Koleszar	Robinson
Allor	Garza	Kuppa	Sabo
Anthony	Gay-Dagnogo	LaFave	Schroeder
Bellino	Glenn	LaGrand	Shannon
Berman	Green	Lasinski	Sheppard
Bolden	Greig	Leutheuser	Slagh
Bollin	Griffin	Liberati	Sneller
Brann	Guerra	Lightner	Sowerby
Brixie	Haadsma	Lilly	Stone
Byrd	Hall	Love	Tate
Calley	Hammoud	Lower	VanSingel
Cambensy	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Camilleri	Hernandez	Manoogian	Vaupel
Carter, B.	Hertel	Marino	Wakeman
Carter, T.	Hoadley	Markkanen	Warren
Chatfield	Hoitenga	Meerman	Webber
Cherry	Hood	Miller	Wendzel
Chirkun	Hope	Mueller	Wentworth
Clemente	Hornberger	Neeley	Whiteford
Cole	Howell	O’Malley	Whitsett
Coleman	Huizenga	Pagan	Wittenberg
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Witwer
Eisen	Johnson, C.	Peterson	Wozniak
Elder	Johnson, S.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	Yaroch
Farrington			

Nays—0

In The Chair: Lilly

Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, the full title of the act shall be inserted to read as follows:

“An act to protect and promote the public health; to codify, revise, consolidate, classify, and add to the laws relating to public health; to provide for the prevention and control of diseases and disabilities; to provide for the classification, administration, regulation, financing, and maintenance of personal, environmental, and other health services and activities; to create or continue, and prescribe the powers and duties of, departments, boards, commissions, councils, committees, task forces, and other agencies; to prescribe the powers and duties of governmental entities and officials; to regulate occupations, facilities, and agencies affecting the public health; to regulate health maintenance organizations and certain third party administrators and insurers; to provide for the imposition of a regulatory fee; to provide for the levy of taxes against certain health facilities or agencies; to promote the efficient and economical delivery of health care services, to provide for the appropriate utilization of health care facilities and services, and to provide for the closure of

hospitals or consolidation of hospitals or services; to provide for the collection and use of data and information; to provide for the transfer of property; to provide certain immunity from liability; to regulate and prohibit the sale and offering for sale of drug paraphernalia under certain circumstances; to provide for the implementation of federal law; to provide for penalties and remedies; to provide for sanctions for violations of this act and local ordinances; to provide for an appropriation and supplements; to repeal certain acts and parts of acts; to repeal certain parts of this act; and to repeal certain parts of this act on specific dates,”

The House agreed to the full title.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Senate Bill No. 283, entitled

A bill to amend 1976 PA 451, entitled “The revised school code,” by amending sections 5 and 1178 (MCL 380.5 and 380.1178), as amended by 2016 PA 385; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 132

Yeas—109

Afendoulis	Filler	Kahle	Reilly
Albert	Frederick	Kennedy	Rendon
Alexander	Garrett	Koleszar	Robinson
Allor	Garza	Kuppa	Sabo
Anthony	Gay-Dagnogo	LaFave	Schroeder
Bellino	Glenn	LaGrand	Shannon
Berman	Green	Lasinski	Sheppard
Bolden	Greig	Leutheuser	Slagh
Bollin	Griffin	Liberati	Sneller
Brann	Guerra	Lightner	Sowerby
Brixie	Haadsma	Lilly	Stone
Byrd	Hall	Love	Tate
Calley	Hammoud	Lower	VanSingel
Cambensy	Hauck	Maddock	VanWoerkom
Camilleri	Hernandez	Manoogian	Vaupel
Carter, B.	Hertel	Marino	Wakeman
Carter, T.	Hoadley	Markkanen	Warren
Chatfield	Hoitenga	Meerman	Webber
Cherry	Hood	Miller	Wendzel
Chirkun	Hope	Mueller	Wentworth
Clemente	Hornberger	Neeley	Whiteford
Cole	Howell	O’Malley	Whitsett
Coleman	Huizenga	Pagan	Wittenberg
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Witwer
Eisen	Johnson, C.	Peterson	Wozniak
Elder	Johnson, S.	Pohutsky	Yancey
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	Yaroch
Farrington			

Nays—0

In The Chair: Lilly

Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, the full title of the act shall be inserted to read as follows:

“An act to provide a system of public instruction and elementary and secondary schools; to revise, consolidate, and clarify the laws relating to elementary and secondary education; to provide for the

organization, regulation, and maintenance of schools, school districts, public school academies, intermediate school districts, and other public school entities; to prescribe rights, powers, duties, and privileges of schools, school districts, public school academies, intermediate school districts, and other public school entities; to provide for the regulation of school teachers and certain other school employees; to provide for school elections and to prescribe powers and duties with respect thereto; to provide for the levy and collection of taxes; to provide for the borrowing of money and issuance of bonds and other evidences of indebtedness; to establish a fund and provide for expenditures from that fund; to make appropriations for certain purposes; to provide for and prescribe the powers and duties of certain state departments, the state board of education, and certain other boards and officials; to provide for licensure of boarding schools; to prescribe penalties; and to repeal acts and parts of acts,”

The House agreed to the full title.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Senate Bill No. 192, entitled

A bill to amend 1949 PA 300, entitled “Michigan vehicle code,” by amending section 310e (MCL 257.310e), as amended by 2015 PA 11.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 133

Yeas—106

Afendoulis	Frederick	Koleszar	Rendon
Albert	Garrett	Kuppa	Robinson
Alexander	Garza	LaFave	Sabo
Allor	Gay-Dagnogo	LaGrand	Schroeder
Anthony	Glenn	Lasinski	Shannon
Bellino	Greig	Leutheuser	Sheppard
Bolden	Griffin	Liberati	Slagh
Bollin	Guerra	Lightner	Sneller
Brixie	Haadsma	Lilly	Sowerby
Byrd	Hall	Love	Stone
Calley	Hammoud	Lower	Tate
Cambensy	Hauck	Maddock	VanSingel
Camilleri	Hernandez	Manoogian	VanWoerkom
Carter, B.	Hertel	Marino	Vaupel
Carter, T.	Hoadley	Markkanen	Wakeman
Chatfield	Hoitenga	Meerman	Warren
Cherry	Hood	Miller	Webber
Chirkun	Hope	Mueller	Wendzel
Clemente	Hornberger	Neeley	Wentworth
Cole	Howell	O’Malley	Whiteford
Coleman	Huizenga	Pagan	Whitsett
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Wittenberg
Eisen	Johnson, C.	Peterson	Witwer
Elder	Johnson, S.	Pohutsky	Wozniak
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	Yancey
Farrington	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch
Filler	Kennedy		

Nays—3

Berman	Brann	Green
--------	-------	-------

In The Chair: Lilly

Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, the full title of the act shall be inserted to read as follows:

“An act to provide for the registration, titling, sale, transfer, and regulation of certain vehicles operated upon the public highways of this state or any other place open to the general public or generally accessible to motor vehicles and distressed vehicles; to provide for the licensing of dealers; to provide for the examination, licensing, and control of operators and chauffeurs; to provide for the giving of proof of financial responsibility and security by owners and operators of vehicles; to provide for the imposition, levy, and collection of specific taxes on vehicles, and the levy and collection of sales and use taxes, license fees, and permit fees; to provide for the regulation and use of streets and highways; to create certain funds; to provide penalties and sanctions for a violation of this act; to provide for civil liability of manufacturers, the manufacturers of certain devices, the manufacturers of automated technology, upfitters, owners, and operators of vehicles and service of process on residents and nonresidents; to regulate the introduction and use of certain evidence; to regulate and certify the manufacturers of certain devices; to provide for approval and certification of installers and servicers of certain devices; to provide for the levy of certain assessments; to provide for the enforcement of this act; to provide for the creation of and to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state and local agencies; to impose liability upon the state or local agencies; to provide appropriations for certain purposes; to repeal all other acts or parts of acts inconsistent with this act or contrary to this act; and to repeal certain parts of this act on a specific date.”

The House agreed to the full title.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Senate Bill No. 193, entitled

A bill to amend 2006 PA 384, entitled “Driver education provider and instructor act,” by amending section 39 (MCL 256.659), as amended by 2010 PA 16.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 134

Yeas—106

Afendoulis	Frederick	Koleszar	Rendon
Albert	Garrett	Kuppa	Robinson
Alexander	Garza	LaFave	Sabo
Allor	Gay-Dagnogo	LaGrand	Schroeder
Anthony	Glenn	Lasinski	Shannon
Bellino	Greig	Leutheuser	Sheppard
Bolden	Griffin	Liberati	Slagh
Bollin	Guerra	Lightner	Sneller
Brixie	Haadsma	Lilly	Sowerby
Byrd	Hall	Love	Stone
Calley	Hammoud	Lower	Tate
Cambensy	Hauck	Maddock	VanSingel
Camilleri	Hernandez	Manoogian	VanWoerkom
Carter, B.	Hertel	Marino	Vaupel
Carter, T.	Hoadley	Markkanen	Wakeman
Chatfield	Hoitenga	Meerman	Warren
Cherry	Hood	Miller	Webber
Chirkun	Hope	Mueller	Wendzel
Clemente	Hornberger	Neeley	Wentworth
Cole	Howell	O'Malley	Whiteford
Coleman	Huizenga	Pagan	Whitsett
Crawford	Iden	Paquette	Wittenberg
Eisen	Johnson, C.	Peterson	Witwer
Elder	Johnson, S.	Pohutsky	Wozniak
Ellison	Jones	Rabhi	Yancey
Farrington	Kahle	Reilly	Yaroch
Filler	Kennedy		

Nays—3

Berman Brann Green

In The Chair: Lilly

Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, the full title of the act shall be inserted to read as follows:

“An act to provide for the certification of driver education providers; to prescribe certain record-keeping and program requirements for driver education providers; to provide for the certification of driver education instructors; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain persons and departments; to prescribe certain fees; to establish a fund in the state treasury; to prescribe remedies, sanctions, and penalties; and to rescind administrative rules.”

The House agreed to the full title.

Rep. Cole moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4509, entitled

A bill to amend 1961 PA 236, entitled “Revised judicature act of 1961,” (MCL 600.101 to 600.9947) by adding section 5707.

The bill was read a second time.

Rep. VanSingel moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.



Rep. Cole moved that House Committees be given leave to meet during the balance of today’s session.

The motion prevailed.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Announcement by the Clerk of Printing and Enrollment

The Clerk announced that the following bills had been reproduced and made available electronically on Wednesday, June 12:

House Bill Nos. 4716 4717

The Clerk announced the enrollment printing and presentation to the Governor on Thursday, June 13, for her approval of the following bills:

Enrolled House Bill No. 4304 at 11:54 a.m.

Enrolled House Bill No. 4305 at 11:56 a.m.

The Clerk announced that the following bills and joint resolution had been reproduced and made available electronically on Thursday, June 13:

Senate Bill Nos. 370 371 372 373 374 375 376 377 378

Senate Joint Resolution H

Reports of Standing Committees

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Iden, Chair, of the Committee on Ways and Means, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Thursday, June 13, 2019

Present: Reps. Iden, Lilly, Leutheuser, Griffin, Hauck, Kahle, Wentworth, Warren, Byrd, Neeley and Hertel

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Vaupel, Chair, of the Committee on Health Policy, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Thursday, June 13, 2019

Present: Reps. Vaupel, Frederick, Alexander, Calley, Hornberger, Lower, Whiteford, Afendoulis, Filler, Mueller, Wozniak, Liberati, Garrett, Clemente, Ellison, Koleszar, Pohutsky, Stone and Witwer

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Hall, Chair, of the Committee on Oversight, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Thursday, June 13, 2019

Present: Reps. Hall, Reilly, Webber, Steven Johnson, LaFave, Schroeder, Cynthia Johnson, Camilleri and LaGrand

Explanation of “No” Votes

Rep. Mueller, having reserved the right to explain his protest against the passage of **House Bill Nos. 4133, 4135, 4136, 4137, 4138, 4139, 4140, 4141, 4142, 4143, 4145, 4443, 4452 and 4144**, made the following statement:

“Mr. Speaker and members of the House:

Although I agree in philosophy about the raise the age initiative, I have serious concerns about the unintended consequences this may cause. There are several logistical and practicality aspects to consider.

It is my opinion that the financial impact on urban areas will outweigh the good intentions of these bills. For example, the increased caseload imposed on the juvenile court system and the cost of housing offenders. In Genesee County alone, it is estimated, ‘raising the age’ will increase the juvenile petition case load by 900 offenders. With one third of those ending up on probation, it would undoubtedly increase the number of probation officers needed to provide proper supervision.

The impact on rural areas may not impose much of a financial burden, however, logistical issues may occur. These could include a shortage of staffing and transportation personnel, along with vehicles. In addition, some rural areas may be forced to build their own juvenile detention centers because neighboring municipalities with facilities may become overburdened with the influx of offenders being housed at their location.

In a time when we are trying to properly fund and improve our infrastructure, we are now going to reallocate between 27 million and 60 million dollars over a period of years that will increase by nature. Regardless if the state pays the cost or its transferred to the county, it is taxpayer dollars.

A more realistic plan to deal with our 17 year old population could include changing the law to state all non-violent offenders will receive a notice to appear and be released at the scene. Offenders who commit assaultive crimes must be arraigned within 24 hours. 17-year-old offenders under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance may be lodged at a adult facility but released when cleared by medical staff with a personal recognizance bond. Expand Holmes Youthful Training Act (HYTA) to include 17-25 year olds (currently 17-24) and broaden the offenses that are HYTA eligible. Lastly, suppress the criminal records of 17-year-old offenders to mirror those in the juvenile system.”

Introduction of Bills

Reps. Anthony, Love, Liberati, Haadsma, Calley, Chirkun, Cambensy, Gay-Dagnogo, Tyrone Carter, Garrett and Jones introduced

House Bill No. 4718, entitled

A bill to amend 1974 PA 258, entitled “Mental health code,” by amending sections 700 and 740 (MCL 330.1700 and 330.1740), as amended by 1995 PA 290.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Health Policy.

Reps. Pagan, Rabhi, Hood, Camilleri, Clemente, Kennedy, Brixie, Warren, Sowerby, Manoogian, Yancey and Hoadley introduced

House Bill No. 4719, entitled

A bill to amend 1994 PA 451, entitled “Natural resources and environmental protection act,” (MCL 324.101 to 324.90106) by adding part 149.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Reps. Hood, Ellison, Stone, Hoadley, Lasinski, Brixie, Tyrone Carter, Bolden, Kennedy, Elder, LaGrand, Pagan, Wittenberg, Camilleri, Hope, Hertel, Robinson, Sowerby, Brenda Carter, Garza, Warren, Byrd, Guerra, Rabhi, Sneller and Jones introduced

House Bill No. 4720, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled "Public health code," by amending sections 2831, 2832, and 2891 (MCL 333.2831, 333.2832, and 333.2891), sections 2831 and 2832 as amended by 1996 PA 307, and section 2891 as amended by 2013 PA 136.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Families, Children, and Seniors.

Reps. LaFave, Hall, Berman, Markkanen, Paquette, Marino, Afendoulis, Steven Johnson and LaGrand introduced
House Bill No. 4721, entitled

A bill to amend 1949 PA 300, entitled "Michigan vehicle code," by amending section 301 (MCL 257.301), as amended by 2011 PA 159.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Reps. Steven Johnson, LaFave and Hall introduced

House Bill No. 4722, entitled

A bill to amend 1931 PA 328, entitled "The Michigan penal code," by amending sections 227 and 231a (MCL 750.227 and 750.231a), section 227 as amended by 1986 PA 8 and section 231a as amended by 2012 PA 427.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Reps. Yaroch, Rabhi, Wozniak, Brann, Yancey and Liberati introduced

House Bill No. 4723, entitled

A bill to amend 2006 PA 384, entitled "Driver education provider and instructor act," by amending sections 35 and 37 (MCL 256.655 and 256.657), section 35 as amended by 2012 PA 258 and section 37 as amended by 2018 PA 277, and by adding section 32.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Reps. Hammoud, Guerra, Rabhi, Bolden, Sowerby, Manoogian, Pagan, Gay-Dagnogo, LaGrand, Anthony, Peterson, Sabo and Robinson introduced

House Bill No. 4724, entitled

A bill to create the law enforcement information sharing act; to prohibit the use of state and local law enforcement resources for the enforcement of federal immigration laws; to provide for the powers and duties of certain state and local governmental officers and entities; and to provide for certain reporting requirements.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Military, Veterans and Homeland Security.

Reps. Peterson, Hammoud, Guerra, Rabhi, Bolden, Sowerby, Manoogian, Pagan, Elder, Gay-Dagnogo, LaGrand, Anthony, Robinson and Sabo introduced

House Bill No. 4725, entitled

A bill to amend 1927 PA 175, entitled "The code of criminal procedure," (MCL 760.1 to 777.69) by adding section 5 to chapter XVI.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Military, Veterans and Homeland Security.

Reps. LaGrand, Hammoud, Guerra, Rabhi, Bolden, Sowerby, Manoogian, Pagan, Elder, Gay-Dagnogo, Anthony, Peterson, Sabo and Robinson introduced

House Bill No. 4726, entitled

A bill to create the standards for responding to federal immigration holds act; and to provide for the powers and duties of certain state and local governmental officers and entities.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Military, Veterans and Homeland Security.

Reps. Bolden, Hammoud, Guerra, Rabhi, Sowerby, Manoogian, Pagan, Elder, Gay-Dagnogo, LaGrand, Anthony, Peterson and Sabo introduced

House Bill No. 4727, entitled

A bill to create the nonprofit legal organization contract act; to create the nonprofit legal organization contract fund; to provide for use of the fund; and to provide for the powers and duties of certain state and local governmental officers and entities.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Military, Veterans and Homeland Security.

Rep. Hernandez introduced
House Bill No. 4728, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 11, 17b, 201, and 236 (MCL 388.1611, 388.1617b, 388.1801, and 388.1836), section 11 as amended by 2018 PA 586, section 17b as amended by 2007 PA 137, and sections 201 and 236 as amended by 2018 PA 265.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Rep. Hernandez introduced
House Bill No. 4729, entitled

A bill to make, supplement, adjust, and consolidate appropriations for various state departments and agencies, the judicial branch, and the legislative branch for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020; to provide for certain conditions on appropriations; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Rep. Cynthia Johnson moved that the House adjourn.
The motion prevailed, the time being 3:35 p.m.

Associate Speaker Pro Tempore Lilly declared the House adjourned until Tuesday, June 18, at 1:30 p.m.

GARY L. RANDALL
Clerk of the House of Representatives